KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MEETING OF THE EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COMMITTEE

AGENDA
Thursday, March 25, 2021 3:00pm-5:00pm
Via Zoom Teleconference

Due to COVID-19, and in accordance with California Executive Orders N-29-20, the District Board
meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be teleconferencing
into the meeting. To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access,
members of the public can observe the meeting by attending the Zoom webinar (on the day and
time of the meeting) and may provide public comment by sending comments to the Board President
and Board Clerk via email at public.comment@kensingtonfire.org. Comments will then be read into
the record, with a maximum allowance of 5 minutes per individual comment, subject to the Chair’s
discretion

Instructions on how to make a public comment during the meeting: At points in the meeting when
the meeting chair requests public comment, members of the public participating in the live meeting
either via internet or telephone shall indicate their desire to speak. If participating via internet,
please click the “raise hand” feature located within the Zoom application screen. If connected via
telephone, please dial “*9” (star, nine).

Any member of the public who needs special accommodations should email
public.comment@kensingtonfire.org 48 hours prior to the meeting. This will enable the Kensington
Fire Protection District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting (28
CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title 1).

Public comment will be taken on each agenda item. Each member of the public will be allotted the
same maximum number of minutes to speak as set by the President before or during its
consideration, except that public speakers using interpretation assistance will be allowed to testify
for twice the amount of the public testimony time limit (California Government Code section
54954 .3(a)).

Internet Address:
https://zoom.us/{/910290394397?pwd=Sk0rczlicUN4VEIUdHE1WGJwWNVFvQT09

Telephone Access:
(669) 900-9128 or (346) 248-7799 or (253) 215-8782

Webinar ID: 910 2903 9439
Passcode: 112233

Page 1 of 2


mailto:public.comment@kensingtonfire.org.
mailto:public.comment@kensingtonfire.org
https://zoom.us/j/91029039439?pwd=Sk0rczlIcUN4VElUdHE1WGJwNVFvQT09

KFPD Meeting of the Emergency Preparedness Committee
Agenda for March 25, 2021

TIMING OF AGENDA ITEMS: Approximate times are included below but may vary to accommodate
appropriate discussion time and attention to the individual items.

1. (3:00pm) CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Directors: Larry Nagel and Kevin Padian
Public Members: Ms. Lisa Caronna, Ms. Katie Gluck, Mr. Peter Guerrero, Mr. Peter
Liddell, Ms. Danielle Madugo, Mr. Paul Moss, Mr. David Spath

2. (3:01pm) PUBLIC COMMENT
This place on the agenda is reserved for commentsand inquiries concerning matters that
do not otherwise appear on the agenda.

3. (3:04pm) ADOPTION OF CONSENT ITEMS

Items listed below are consent items, which are considered routine and will be enacted by
one motion. Reports and recommendations prior to assigning consent item designations to
the various items have been received and considered. Copies of the reports are on file in
the Fire Protection District Administrative Office at 217 Arlington Avenue and are available
to the public. The disposition of the item is indicated. There will be no separate discussion
of consent items. If discussion is requested for an item, that item will be removed from the
list of consent items and considered separately on the agenda. (Supporting material)

a. Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting of February 25, 2021 (Approve)
4. (3:05pm) OLD BUSINESS
a. Report from Committee Members on previous agenda items (20 mins)
i. Proposed hires of Emergency Preparedness Coordinator and Grant Writer
ii. Refrigerator magnets project
iii. Emergency Radio Program
iv. Update on Report from KPD on progress with evacuation procedures
5. (3:15pm) NEW BUSINESS

a. Priorities for informing the public about Emergency Preparedness.

b. Possible Projects to Inform Residents about EP in Advance of Next Fire Season
(Fire Plug Issue, Articles, Websites, Social Media, Etc.) (15 mins)

c. Form 700 Compliance
5. (4:25pm) EPC MEMBER REPORTS ON OTHER ITEMS

a. Status of the Paths with respect to vegetation management and improvements
(Lisa)

b. Other reports
6. (4:35pm) CALL FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ADJOURNMENT
The next regular meeting of the Emergency Preparedness Committee of the Kensington

Fire Protection District will be held on April 22, 2021 at 3:00pm via Zoom Teleconference.

Page 2 of 2



KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

DATE/TIME: February 25, 2021 / 3:00pm to 5:00pm
LOCATION: Via Zoom

PRESENT: Directors: Larry Nagel and Kevin Padian
Committee: Lisa Caronna, Katie Gluck, Peter Guerrero, Peter Liddell,
Danielle Madugo, Paul Moss, David Spath
Staff: GM Bill Hansell
Public: Mabry Benson, Chris Hilliard, Hal Graboske, Linnea Due, Lorika G

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL:
Director Padian called the meeting to order at 3:04 p.m. and called roll.
2. PUBLIC COMMENT:

e Linnea Due reported that she attended the meeting in Berkeley about fuel reduction
in Cerrito Canyon which is on the border of Berkeley and Kensington. Linnea stressed
that it is still important to keep the area as a wildlife refuge.

o Mabry Benson commented on the proposed set of general duties for the proposed
Emergency Preparedness Coordinator position. She would put education ahead of
neighborhood coordination programs, and she would list as first emergency
preparation, including alert procedures, safe vegetation practices, and house
hardening, because these are critical and most realistically doable. Although Kevin
has spent a lot of time on emergency evacuation, his brief mention of the capacity of
our streets to handle a community-wide evacuation makes this an unachievable goal.
Mabry feels it is better to do what little can be done to make streets more passable
and educate folks about the difficulties of evacuation and need to plan ahead and act
early.

o Mabry Benson also noted that the evacuation route signs at the bottom of Sunset by
the cemetery were confusing. It wasn't clear which way to go, and maybe we should
add arrows pointing to the road thru the gate. Kevin will bring this up with Officer Brad
Harms of the KPD.

NEW BUSINESS - EPC COORDINATOR POSITION (taken out of order to free up Chief
Pigoni’s time)

o Chief Pigoni presented an alternative of having the EPC Coordinator being a sworn

Page 1 of 3



KFPD Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting Minutes of February 25, 2021

fire official who would work with the General Manager

e Chief Pigoni reviewed an e-mail that he sent to General Manager Bill Hansell

e The Committee discussed the memo from the Chief and asked questions, which he
readily answered

3. ADOPTION OF CONSENT ITEMS

a. Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting of January 28, 2021 (Approve)

MOTION: M/s Caronna/Nagel: To adopt consent items.

VOTE: Unanimous

Motion passed.

4. NEW BUSINESS

a. Refrigerator Magnets Project Update
o Magnets will have only emergency numbers for each agency
o Changes in wording suggested for calling 911

b. Proposed Emergency Radio Program Update — Revisiting Possible Radio
Options

o Kevin reviewed radio options

o Larry expressed his opinion that we had been exploring these radio options for
over a year and we really haven’t reached resolution

o Lisa suggested that we leave this for the Emergency Preparedness Coordinator

c. Job Description for Grant Proposal Writer
o Kevin presented the description for a grant writer
o Larry noted how many grants need to be anticipated
o
d. Coordination with KPD for Installing Emergency Evacuation Signs at Sunset &
Arlington
o Kevin will coordinate with KPD Traffic Safety Office Brad Harms

e. Discussion of Possible Support for a KFPD Agenda Item to Hear Progress
Report from the KPD about Proposed Parking Change Initiatives (10 mins)
o Officer Harms wants to present to the Board. This will be scheduled as
convenient for both agencies.

f. Possible Projects to Inform Residents about EP in Advance of Next Fire
Season (Fire Plug Issue, Articles, Websites, Social Media, Etc.)
o Discussion of Fire Plug. — Should the format be changed? Does it serve its
purpose? All members are encouraged to send in information to help the GM

Page 2 of 3



KFPD Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting Minutes of February 25, 2021

prepare the next issue.

5. EPC MEMBER REPORTS ON OTHER ITEMS

o Peter Guerrero reported that the Vollmer Peak camera is inoperative.

e Paul Moss asked about KARO/ECHO
6. REPORT BY PRESIDENT NAGEL

Protecting your City from Wildfire 2021 Conference: Highlighting the information for a
report to the full board. Larry presented a short overview.of the Protecting Your City
from Wildfire 2021 workshop that he attended on Feb2-3. His slides are attached to
these minutes.

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
None at present; to be determined.

8. ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 5:15 PM by Kevin Padian
The next regular meeting of the Emergency Preparedness Committee of the Kensington

Fire Protection District will be held on March 25, 2021 at 3:00pm via Zoom
Teleconference.

MINUTES PREPARED BY: Larry Nagel

These minutes were approved at the Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting of the

Kensington Fire Protection District on 18 March 2021

Attest:

Emergency Preparedness Committee Member

Page 3 of 3



Kensington Fire Protection District Mail - KFPD - Emergency Prep Coor... https://mail.google.com/mail/u/2?ik=6efadd273d&view=pt&search=all...

Attachment 1

M Gmall Bill Hansell <bhansell@kensingtonfire.org>

KFPD - Emergency Prep Coordinator

Michael Pigoni <MPigoni@ci.el-cerrito.ca.us> Tue, Feb 23, 2021 at 12:23 PM
To: Bill Hansell <bhansell@kensingtonfire.org>

Good Morning Bill,

I read through the principal duties submitted by Director Padian and since this is a full time position that would
taper down to half time and then be re-evaluated after would not be a job that the Fire Department could provide as
it could require the City to partially absorb the position or potentially lay off the employee if the Fire District
decided to discontinue the position. If the Fire District was to hire this position, then I have concerns that a civilian
position working directly for (representing) the Fire District will create the perception that they are part of the Fire
Department. Some of the principal duties outlined in agenda item cross overand/or parallel duties that the Fire
Department has been providing such as working with the CERT groups, piblic education, vegetation management,
emergency evacuation plans earthquake preparedness and in general working to keep residents safe. There is no
clear chain of command for this position in that the Board would set ‘goals andiobjectives, the EPC would provide
assistance to, but the person would report to the GM. This alongdwith the fact theé,fact they would need to interface
with the Fire personnel would blur who they actually work forfand make it more difficult for a unified message.

If this position was to be a full-time job, then the Fir¢' Department could consider providing a sworn position based
on the following:

« Based on the job prerequisites, thisgpositionwould start off at approximately $50.00 per hour plus full
benefits.

« The position would be a 40 hour per week sworn non-exempt flexible work schedule to accommodate night
and weekend meetings without incurring overtime.

« Total compensation forthis position'wouldbe approximately $210,000 with benefits

« As a sworn position, this person would be available to assist the engine company for emergencies providing
additional help when needed:

« The position would require a eell phone, laptop, radio, and vehicle, preferably a pickup.

« Chain of Command would be Fire District Board > General Manager > Fire Chief > Battalion Chiefs >
Emergency Preparedness Coordinator

This position would coordinate with the Fire Department to:

« Obtain information on the CERT groups and the members as they exist now including the CERT sheds that
were developed years ago.

« Set up meetings, in person or virtual with each team to determine level of participation and potential needs

« Provide in person or virtual classes/presentations to gain interest in CERT

« Coordinate with the Fire Department CERT instructors to set up training classes when health restrictions are
lifted

« Update the District website

« Make presentations at all the K-Groups to continue public education on emergency preparedness

« Develop and set up programs to provide home inspections and triage reports on hardening homes

« Develop Fire Wise USA neighborhood program

1of2 2/24/2021, 11:24 AM



Kensington Fire Protection District Mail - KFPD - Emergency Prep Coor... https://mail.google.com/mail/u/2?ik=6efadd273d&view=pt&search=all...

2 of 2

» Work with KPD and Fire on continued improvements in evacuation plans

This is just a general list of duties that the Fire Department can provide. The EPC and the Board would need to
fine-tune the job description and scope of work to provide a more accurate cost to provide this position. There is
no doubt the District can provide this position at a lower cost due to pension costs, I just have concerns on the
mixed messages and the similarities of duties between the Fire Department and this position.

Hope this helps a little,

Michael Pigoni

Fire Chief

El Cerrito / Kensington Fire Department
(510) 812-4503

[Quoted text hidden]

2/24/2021, 11:24 AM



Attachment 2

Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

February 2<3, 2021

Notes Taken By

Laurence W. Nagel
President and Director, Kensington Fire Protection District
217 Arlington Avenue
Kensington, CA 94707



Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

Day 1

Session 1 Presentation: Climate Change: The Connection between Drought, Heat
Waves & Wildfire in California — Lessons Léarned for Santa Barbara, CA

Session 2 Presentation: Extreme Fire Behavior Fire whirls, fire tornadoes, fire clouds,
and dry lightning.

Session 3 Presentation: Cal Fire 2020 Lessons Learned & Plans for Wildfire
Prevention & Mitigation Moving Forward

Session 4 Panel: The Price of Fire:)Funding Issues & Grants for Projects

Session 5 Panel: Aligning Insurance Provider & Community-Wide Home Hardening
Efforts

Session 6 Panel: Aligning Land Use Planning & CWPPs
Session 7 Presentation: Wildfire Smoke: Health Hazards & Air Quality Management



Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

Day 2
Session 8 Panel: Updating Vegetation & Forest Management Practices
Session 9 Presentation: Case Study: Shaverdake Fuel Reduction Project
Session 10 Panel: WUI Issues: State and Local Perspectives
Session 11 Panel: Wildfire Prevention Engineering

Session 12 Presentation: Emergency. Notification & Wildfire Public Education
Efforts

Session 13 Panel: Evacuation Planning and Coordination

Session 14 Presentation: Evolving Role of Aircraft Types and Airspace Operations
for Aerial Fire Mitigation



Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

Session 1 Presentation: Climate Change: The Connegction between Drought, Heat Waves &
Wildfire in California — Lessons Learned.for Santa Barbara, CA

Presenter: Leila Carvalho, Professor of Meteorology & Climate Science, UNIVERSITY OF
CALIFORNIA, SANTA BARBARA

Record breaking heat waves, California’s ongeing drought, and hundreds of thousands of acres with
dry, overgrown vegetation created an unprecedented fire season in 2020. Hear how climate change
factors are contributing to more and larger fikes, the interplay of the conditions that created the 2020
fire season, and how climate change will continue to affect communities all over California in the years

to come.



Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

Session 1 Presentation: Climate Change: The Connection between Drought, Heat Waves &
Wildfire in California — Lessons Learnéed for Santa Barbara, CA

Global warming has affected the frequency andpersistence of heat waves -> implications for the
occurrence of mega wildfires

To protect our cities:

Understanding wildfire risks and increaset€silience requires a regional focus: better forecasts of
fire weather regimes are critical

Evacuation strategies and resilience‘capacity need to be locally investigated

Education, Urban Planning, forest management and reduction of emission of greenhouse gases are
critical.

The science community, decision makers and stakeholders need to work together to build better
prepared and more resilient communities.



Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

Session 10 Panel: WUI Issues: State and Local Perspectives

Moderator: Tracy Katelman, Ownelr, FOREVERGREEN FORESTRY
Panelists:
Arn Andrews, Assistant Town Managery TOWN OF LOS GATOS, CA
Chad Hanson, PhD, Ecolegist, JOHN MUIR PROJECT
Bob Roper, CALIFORNIA FIRE SAFE COUNCIL
Scott Witt, Deputy Chief of Fire Plan Program, CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND
FIRE PROTECTION (CAL FIRE)

Wildland Urban Interface (WUI) expanSion,continues across CA, as various projections predict that
the state could have up to 1.7 millionthomes in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZS) by
2050. City leaders and local officials face the challenge of permitting development in VHFHSZs to
accommodate growing populations whilejuggling the safety risks involved. New builds must comply
with Chapter 7A; however, many communities struggle with both engaging residents in retrofit and
enacting local building codes and defensible space ordinances. This panel will discuss lessons

Iea}rnedciln land use planning for WUIs, mitigation standards, how they are best adopted, followed, and
enforced.



Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

Session 10 Panel: WUI Issues: State and Local Perspectives

Arn Andrews, Assistant Town Managef, TOWN OF LOS GATOS, CA
Wildfire PreparednesSs infLos Gatos

Used Montecito as a model for Wildfire Preparation

WUI Evacuation Assessment Plan — Nt an/evacuation plan because that can only be established
when fire occurs

Effort included road widening as well as fuel reduction
Cost for wildfire preparation is $2.25M

Formed a Wildfire Mitigation Committee comprised of community members



Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

Session 13 Panel: Evacuation Planning and Coordination

Moderator: Christopher Danch, Executive Director & GrantsiSpecialist, OJAl VALLEY FIRE SAFE
COUNCIL

Panelists:
Susan Duenas, Public Safety"Manager, CITY OF MALIBU
Paul Lowenthal, Assistant Fire Marshalf SANTA ROSA FIRE DEPARTMENT
Kevin McGowan, Director, LOS ANGELES COUNTY, OFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
Daryl Osby, Fire Chief, LOS ANGELES COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT

Wildfire evacuations have occurred in many cammunities up and down CA, from Santa Rosa and Paradise
to Ventura and Malibu. Even communitieSiwith comprehensive evacuation plans struggle with fast-moving
fires and getting real-time information, as thousands pour onto a few roads in many of these incidents. It is
vitally important for cities and counties to develop robust plans that include granular information on route
maps and zones, strategies for the vulnerable, shelter estimates, and contingencies for blocked routes. But
not everyone agrees on what to include in an evacuation plan, whether they should be publicly available,
how detailed they should be, or whether the state should require them for at-risk areas. This session will
tackle these important issues with valuable lessons learned and best practices.



Protecting Your City From Wildfire 2021

Session 13 Panel: Evacuation Planning and Coordination

Question: Does anyone have an opinion on the use ofsirens and/or outdoor public address systems
for emergency notification. Does anyone use them?

Paul — After the Tubbs fire, there were cries for sitenss,Locally, the areas that were being rebuilt.
Outdoor systems may not be heard, and if they,are fieard, what does it mean.? From Santa Rosa’s
perspective, they are not currently in favor®f them.

Susan — After the Woolsey fire, Malibu had'a seund analysis done and the conclusion was that only
people near the siren would hear them,inside.

Daryl — Echoed what Susan said. At this point, LA County is not in favor of sirens.



	1. (3:00pm) CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL        Directors: Larry Nagel and Kevin Padian
	4. (3:05pm) OLD BUSINESS
	a. Report from Committee Members on previous agenda items (20 mins)
	i.    Proposed hires of Emergency Preparedness Coordinator and Grant Writer
	ii.   Refrigerator magnets project
	iii.  Emergency Radio Program
	iv.  Update on Report from KPD on progress with evacuation procedures
	5.      (3:15pm) NEW BUSINESS
	a.  Priorities for informing the public about Emergency Preparedness.
	b.  Possible Projects to Inform Residents about EP in Advance of Next Fire Season (Fire Plug Issue, Articles, Websites, Social Media, Etc.)  (15 mins)
	c.  Form 700 Compliance
	a.  Status of the Paths with respect to vegetation management and improvements (Lisa)
	b.  Other reports
	6. (4:35pm) CALL FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ADJOURNMENT
	The next regular meeting of the Emergency Preparedness Committee of the Kensington Fire Protection District will be held on April 22, 2021 at 3:00pm via Zoom Teleconference.
	20210325_03a Draft EPC Mtg Minutes of 20210225.pdf
	NEW BUSINESS - EPC COORDINATOR POSITION (taken out of order to free up Chief Pigoni’s time)
	 Chief Pigoni presented an alternative of having the EPC Coordinator being a sworn fire official who would work with the General Manager
	 Chief Pigoni reviewed an e-mail that he sent to General Manager Bill Hansell
	 The Committee discussed the memo from the Chief and asked questions, which he readily answered
	a. Refrigerator Magnets Project Update
	o Magnets will have only emergency numbers for each agency
	o Changes in wording suggested for calling 911
	b. Proposed Emergency Radio Program Update – Revisiting Possible Radio Options
	o Kevin reviewed radio options
	o Larry expressed his opinion that we had been exploring these radio options for over a year and we really haven’t reached resolution
	o Lisa suggested that we leave this for the Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	c. Job Description for Grant Proposal Writer
	o Kevin presented the description for a grant writer
	o Larry noted how many grants need to be anticipated
	o
	d. Coordination with KPD for Installing Emergency Evacuation Signs at Sunset & Arlington
	o Kevin will coordinate with KPD Traffic Safety Office Brad Harms
	e. Discussion of Possible Support for a KFPD Agenda Item to Hear Progress Report from the KPD about Proposed Parking Change Initiatives (10 mins)
	o Officer Harms wants to present to the Board.  This will be scheduled as convenient for both agencies.
	f. Possible Projects to Inform Residents about EP in Advance of Next Fire Season (Fire Plug Issue, Articles, Websites, Social Media, Etc.)
	o Discussion of Fire Plug.  – Should the format be changed?  Does it serve its purpose?  All members are encouraged to send in information to help the GM prepare the next issue.
	7.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
	None at present; to be determined.
	8.  ADJOURNMENT
	Meeting adjourned at 5:15 PM by Kevin Padian
	The next regular meeting of the Emergency Preparedness Committee of the Kensington Fire Protection District will be held on March 25, 2021 at 3:00pm via Zoom Teleconference.




